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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TC THE MEMBERS OF BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial statements
1. Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhilai Jaypee Cement
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes In Equity ang the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statement including a summary of significant accounting policles and other
explanatory information {(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described under paragraph 2(a),
2(b) and 2(c) In the Basis for Qualified Opinton paragraph mentioned below, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In the manner so required and give a {rue and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019, its iosses inciuding other comprehensive income, changes in equify and Its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Qualified Oplinion

We refer to:

{8) Note 36 to the financial statemenis in respect of preparation of financial statements
of the Company gn going concern basis for the reasons stated therein. During the
year the Company has incurred a Net Loss of Rs.4,162.99 lakhs resulting info
accumulated losses of Rs.40,878.63 lakhs against equity capital of Rs.37,368.48
lakhs and erosion of net worth as at March 31, 2019. Further, the Company's current
liabilities exceed current assets. These matters require the company t¢ generate
additional cash flow to fund the operations as well as payment to lender, creditors
and the statutory obligaticns. The appropriateness of assumption of going cencern is
dependent upon generation of additional cash flow to fund the operations and meet
its obligations and implementation of business plan which are critical to the
Company’s abillty to continue as going concern. Accordingly, we are unable to
comment on the consequential impact, if any, on the financial statements.

{b) Note 34 to the finrancial statements in respect of recognition of deferred tax assets on
account of carried forward unused tax losses and other taxable temporary differences
aggregating to Rs.15,863.30 lakbs. In our opinion, sufficient future taxable income
may nct be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized and such
recognition is not in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 12 “Income Taxes”
(Ind AS 12). Had the aforesaid deferred tax assefs not been recognized, loss after
tax for the year ended on March 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs.15,863.30
lakhs and other equity would have been lower by Rs.15,863.30 lakbs.
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(¢) Note 35 to the financla! statements, the Company had not provided compensation for
short lifting of annuat Agreed Quantity of Granulated Slag of Rs,5,457.48 lakhs upto
March 31, 2019 (including Rs. 2685.80 lakhs upto September 30, 2017 already
demanded by the supplier). The Company has, however, disputed the claim as the
material could not be lifted due to non-furnishing of bank guarantee, auction of
gquantity in open market etc. being default of the supplier and the company also have
filed counter claim with the party for contributlon loss suffered by the Company. The
same being under negatiation, the company has not provided any expenses during
the year, Hence, we are unable to comment to the extent to which this liability will
be settled.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10} of the Act {SAs). Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Finrancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI} together with the independence reguirements that are relevant to our audlt of
the financlal statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibiiities In accordance with these
reguirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our quaiified opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

a) As Stated in Note no. 15.4 of the financial statements, Jaiprakash Associates Ltd.
(JAL), the holding company had pledged 30% of the shares of the company and also
agreed and signed a Non-Disposa! Undertaking (NDU) for the remaining 44% shares
in favor of Yes Bank Ltd. (YBL) as a collateral security against the loan facility of
Rs.465 crore avalled by Jaypee Cement Carperation Ltd. (JCCL), a wholly-own
subsidiary of JAL. YBL assigned the same in the favor of Assets Care and
Reconstruction Enterprise Limited (ACRE). The ACRE informed about the transfer of
entfre pledged/NDU shares of the company in its name. However, JAL continues to
show the investment in Its books of accounts as the shareholders agreement with
Steel Authority of Indla (SAIL), the JV partner in the company, provides that a
purpeorted transfer not in accordance with the terms of Shareholder Agreement shall
be null and void. The company has therefore maintained status quo ante of the
shareholding In its Books of Accounts though depository has transferred the shares
in the name of ACRE.

b) As Stated in Note no. 37 of the financial statements, no provision has been
considered necessary by the management against Entry Tax amounting to Rs,
3408.62 lakhs (including interest) as demanded by the Commercial Tax
Department. The company has filed the Writ Petition in Hon'ble High Court of
Chhattisgarh against the order of Commercial Tax Department. Further, the
company had filed for the exemption certificate regarding payment of entry tax
which was rejected by the Department of Commerce & Industries, Chhattisgarh.
During the year, the company has filed an appeal before the State Appellate Ferum,
Department of Commerce and Industries, (Government of Chhattisgarh) against the
order of the Department of Commerce & Industrles, Chhattisgarh. The Management
is confident for favorable outcome in both the above-mentioned cases. Moraover,
Rs.684.35 lakhs have been deposited against the entry tax demand tili date and
shown as part of other non-current assets which Js in the opinion of the
management is good and recoverable.




4. Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other Information comprises the information inciuded in the Director’s Report including
its Annexures and Shareholder’s Information, but does not inciude the financial statements
and our auditer's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does neot cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to repert that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

5. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charge with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that glve a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified section 133 of the Act. This
responslbility also includes maintenance of adequate accountlng records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and falr view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the gelng concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's repoert that incdudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Mlsstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considersd material iIf, individually or in the aggregate, they could
egsonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basls of
b;e% financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, deslgn and perform audlt procedures responsive to those
risks, and cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and eppropriate to provide a basis for
our cpinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting fram error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

# Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3){1) of the Act, we are alsc responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the golng concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to centinue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention In our auditor’s report to the related dlsclesures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or condltions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a golng concern,

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
Inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underilying transactions and events in a manner that achleves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or In aggregate, makes it probable that the ecopomic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in
evafuating the resuits of our work; and (il) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought toc bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

o
e <7
ACCOPRITANTS /=
;! Ui




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government In terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give In “"Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and except for the effect/possible effects of the matters described in the
"Basis for Qualified Opinicn” paragraph obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

Except for the effect/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified
Opinion” paragraph, in our opinien, proper beooks of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehenslve
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

except for the effect/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basls for
Qualified Opinien” paragraph, in cur opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rules issued thereunder.

The matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in cur opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act,

The qualification relating to the malntenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph;

With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial controls over financlal reporting of
the Company and the operating effectlveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in *Annexure-B”. Our report expresses Qualified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financlal controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our informatlon and according to the explanations
given to us, the company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year.
Accordingly, section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company,




1} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on Its financial
position to the extent ascertained, in its financial statements (Refer note 31);

ii. Except for the effects/possible effects of matters described under basis of
qualifled opinion paragraph, the Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable taw or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
lesses, If any, on long-term contracts. The Company did not have any
derivatlve contracts,

fi. There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For CHATURVEDI &PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
No, 307068
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Partner
Membership No, 500819
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May 21, 2019



“Annexura A’ he In ent Auditors’

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 20159:

|
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(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b} The fixed Assets were physlcally verified during the year by the Management In
accordance with a regular program of verification which, In our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets,
According to the information and explanations given to us, discrepancles noticed
on such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with In the
books of account,

{c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, titfle deeds of the leasehold and
freehold immovable properties are in the name of the company,

According to the Information and explanaticns given to us, the management has
conducted physical verlfication of inventory at reascnable intervals during the year.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between physical stocks and book records
were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companles, firms, LLP firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013, Accordingly, the clause iii (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has neither
given any loan, guarantee and security nor made any Investment in respect of which
section 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable, Accordingly, the clause (v
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year within the meaning of Sectlons 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.
Accordingly, the clause v of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have breadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companles Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examlnation of these records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or
complete.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of employee’s state insurance, goods and
services tax, cess and any other statutory dues except provident fund and
Income tax deducted at sources with the appropriate authorities. There have
been significant delays in a large number of cases in depositing these dues with
the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding as on March 31, 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable except as given in
Appendix -1 to this report.
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New Delhl Partner
May 21, 2019 Membershlp No. 500819

{b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, there is no dues outstanding in respect of income tax,
goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except given in
Appendix-2 to this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
cbtained any leans from bank, financial institution, government and has not issued any
debentures during the financial year. The Company has defaulted in payment of
interest to bank. The detalls of such defaults are given in Appendix-3.

According to the Information and explanaticns given to us, the Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term {oans during the year. Accordingly, the clause ix of paragraph 3 of the Crder
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees have been noticed or reported during
the year,

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration has been paid by the company during the year. Accordingly, the clause
xi of paragraph 3 of the Order Is net applicable to the Company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the clause xli of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Campany.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, transactions with the
related parties are In compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and the detalls have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debenture durfng the year under revlew, Accordingly, the clause xiv of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not apptlicable to the Company.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, the company has not
entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them
as per section 192 of Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the clause xv of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For CHATURVEDI & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountant

Firm Regigtrati ~307068E __—
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Annexure “'B” t¢ the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Financial] Statements

f Bhiilai nt Limite

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”)

We have audited the Internal flnancial controis over financial reporting of Bhilai Jaypee Cement Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with gur audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility far Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining intermat financial controls
hased on the internal control gver financial reparting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Contrals Over Flnancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accocuntants of Indfa. These
responsibllities include the deslgn, implementation and maintenance of adequate interna! financial
controls that were operating effectlvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s pollcles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accountlng records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls over flnancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financlal Controls Over Flnancial Reporting (the “Gulidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both Issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial contrels over financial reporting was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectlvely in all materlal respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the Internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Qur audit of internal financial controls over financlal reporting included obtainlng an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the Coampany's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financlal control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes (n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting Incluges those policies and procedures that
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permitf preparation of financia! statements In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial contrels over financlal reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal
finandial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal
financlal control over financlal reporting may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion according to the Information and explanations glven to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2019:

The Company did not have appropriate internal financlal controls over {a) Assessment of recoverability
of deferred tax assets, (b) Assessment of penaity due to non-fulfilment of committed contract for raw
material and {c) assessment of tax liability due to pending litigation.

The Inadequate supervisory and review control over Company’s process in respect of its aforesaid
assessment In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India could potentially
result In a material misstatement in preparation and presentation of financial statement including the
profit/loss after tax.

A ‘material weakness’ Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficlencies, in internal financial control cver
financlal reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibllity that a material misstatement of the
company's annual cor Interim financial statements will not be prevented cor detected on a timely basis.

Qualified opinion

In our oplnlon, except for the effects/possible effects of material weaknesses described in “basis of
qualified opinion” paragraph above, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reperting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reperting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audlt of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the materlal weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audlt tests appiied in our audit of the financlal statements of the Company for the
year ended on March 31, 2019, and these material weaknesses have affected our opinlon on the
financlal statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified opinion on the financial
statements.

For CHATURVEDI & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountant

Firm Registration Ne—~307068E
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ANG3 MAHM%RIA
New Delhl Parther

May 21, 2019 Membership No. 500819
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Appendix-1 As referred to in para vil (a) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

Name of the Statue Nature of the Amount | Period to Due Date Date of
Dues {Rs. in | which payment
Lakhs) | amount
relates
Mines and Mineral National Mineral 17.00 Upto March, 19th of Next -
Development and Exploration Trust 2018 Month
Regulation Amengment 0.56 April 18 July 19, 2018 -
Act, 2015 1.80 May 18 August 19, -
2018
0.99 June 18 September 18, -
2018
Interest 9.40 Upto - -
September 30,
2018
Mines and Mineral Dlstrict Mineral 98.82 Upto March, 19th of Next -
Development and Foundation 2018 Manth
Regulation Amengment 14.46 April 18 July 19, 2018 -
Act, 2015 27.01 May 18 August 19, -
2018
14.79 June 18 September 18, -
2018
Interest 5.54 Upto -
September 30,
2018
Mineral Concession Royalty 72,61 2017-18 20 th of Next -
Rules, 1860 Month
Interest 459.48 Upto -
September 30,
2018
Chhattisgarh Value Work Contract 3.31 May 17 June 10, 2017 -
Added Tax, 2003 Tax 4.45 June 17 July 10, 2017 -
Chhattisgarh Value Value Added Tax 30.0% April 17 May 10, 2017 -
Added Tax, 2003 33.78 May 17 June 10, 2017 -
26.79 June 17 Juiy 10, 2017 -
Interest 1.18 | Upto March 31, Immediate -
2018
Employees’ Provident Interest 7.01 Upto March, Immediate -
funds and Miscellaneous 2108
Provisions Act, 1952
The Central Sales Tax Central Sales 0.79 June 17 Juiy 10, 2017 -
Act, 1956 Tax 6.25 June 17 Juiy 10, 2017 -
0.27 April, 17 to 10% of next -
June 17 month
The Income Tax Act, Interest .09 AY 2013-14 Immediate ~
1961
Goods and Services Tax | Interest 10.65 | Upto March 31, 20" of next -
Act, 2017 2018 month
14.55 April, 2018 May 20, 2018 -
Interest 11.17 May, 2018 June 20, 2018 -
6.55 June, 2018 July 20, 2018 -
4.26 July,2018 August 20, -
2018
1.53 | August, 2018 | September 20, -
2018
8ullding and other Labour Cess 55.81 2009-10 Advance -
Construction Worker Payment
Welfare Cess Act, 1996
Madhya Pradesh Gramin | Infrastructure 84.70 | Upto 2017-18 | April 30 Every -
Avasanrachna Tatha Tax Year

Sadak Vikas Adinlyan-
2005




Name of the Statue Nature of the Amount | Period to Due Date Date of
Dues {Rs. in | which payment
Lakhs) | amount
relates
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Entry tax and 968.59 2014-15 10™ of next -
interest thereon¥ Month
181.93 2015-16 10™ of next -
Month
2.02 2016-17 10™ of next -
Month
10.40 2017-18 10™ of next -
Month
Madhya Pradesh Property Tax 41.51 2016-17 July 2016 -
Muncipal Corparation 62.74 2017-18 July 2017 -
Act, 1956 £62.74 2018-19 July 2018 -

* Refer note 37 of the financial statements.

Appendix-2 As referred to para vii(b) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report:

’T‘Hame of the Statue MNature of Amount | Period Forum where Amount
Dues {Rs. In to dispute is pending Deposited
Lakhs) | which {Rs. in
the Lakhs)
amount
relates
MP VAT, 2002 Demand for 161.81 | 2009-10 | Commercial Tax 161.81
VAT Tribunal, Bhopal
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Demand for 12.82 | 2010-11 | Commercial Tax 12.82
Entry Tax Tribunal, Bhopal
MP VAT, 2002 Demand for 20,45 | 2011-12 | Commercial Taxes 20.45
VAT Appellate Board
The Central Excise Act, Demand for 44.68 | 2009-10 | Exclse Tribunal -
1644 Excise Duty 57.98 | 2009-10 | Excise Trlbunal -
2,20 | 2009-10 | Commissicner of -
Exclse
8.88 | 2008-10 | Commissioner of -
Excige
Building and other Demand on 222.15 | 2009-10 | Asst. Labour =
Construction Worker account of Commissicner
Welfare Cess Act, 1996 Cess
West Bengal Value Added Cemand for 3.92 | 2012-13 | Revision Board -
Tax Act, 2003 VAT and
Purchase Tax
West Bengal Value Added Demand for 5.59 | 2013-14 | Revislon Board -
Tax Act, 2003 Penalty
Orissa Value Added Tax, Demand for 219.85 | 2012-13 | Addl. Commissioner 14.59
2004 VAT, Interest Sales Tax
and Penalty
MP VAT, 2002 Demand for 2.87 | 2013-14 | Addl. Commissioner 0.29
CsT Sales Tax
Jharkband Value Added Dernand for 331.22 | 2015-16 | Commissioner -
Tax Act, 2005 VAT Commercial Taxes,
Ranch}
The Custom Act, 1962 Demand for 614,00 | 2016-17 | Tribunal 217.06
Customs Duty
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Demand for 125.42 | Novemnb | High Court 125.42
Entry Tax er 2014
to June
2017
The Central Sales Tax Act, | Demand for 2.87 | 2013-14 | Addl. Commissioner, 0.43
1956 CSsT Commercial Tax,
= Jabalpur
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[ Name of the Statue Nature of Amount | Period Forum where Amount
Dues (Rs. in to dispute is pending Deposited
Lakhs) which (Rs. in
the Lakhs)
amount
relates
1.50 | 2014-15 | Deputy 0.15
Commissioner,
Commercial Tax,
Satna
7.41 | 2012-13 | Chhattisgarh 2.37
Commercial Tax
Tribunal, Raipur
Chhattisgarh Value Added | Demand for 19.88 | 2012-13 | Chhattlsgarh 6.36
Tax, 2G03 VAT Commercial Tax
Tribunal, Ralpur
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Entry tax and 723.87 | 2012-13 | High Court 108.58
Interest 928.89 | 2011-12 | Appeal Yet to be 544.36
thereon filed
Chhattisgarh Value Added Demand for 305.39 | 2011-12 | Chhattisgarh 109.86
Tax, 2003 VAT Commerclal Tax
Tribunal
15.03 | 2011-12 | Chhattisgarh 4.81
Commercial Tax
Tribunal
Entry Tax Act, 1976 Entry tax and 209.40 | 2010-11 | High Court 31.41
interest
thereon 577.87 | 2013-14 | High Court -
The Central Sales Tax Act, | Demand for 22,71 | 2011-12 | Additional 2.28
1956 CST Commissioner,
Commercial Tax,
Jabalpur
54.70 | 2012-13 | Additional 5.48
Commissioner,
Commercial Tax,
Jabalpur
The Finance Act, 1994 Demand for 14.21 | 2012-15 | Commissioner 1.07
Service Tax Appeal

Appendix-3 As referred to in para viii of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

Amount and Period of Default of Interest on Cash Credit

Particulars Range of Default Range of Period of Outstanding as on
Amount Default March 31, 2019
(Rs. In Lakhs) {In Days) (Rs. In Lakhs)
State Bank of India 63.66-1523.74 672-1 1,125.12




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LTD.
U26940CT2007PLCO20250
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

{Rs, in Lakhs)

Particular Note As at As at
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
ASSETS
[1] NON CURRENT ASSETS
(a}) Property, Plant and Equlpment 4 52,614.56 56,484.19
{b} Capital Work-in-Progress 203.40 207,53
{c) Otner Intangible Asset 4 12.33 14.43
{d} Financial Asseis '
Others Financial Assets 5 393.89 412,82
(e) Deferred Tax Assets [Net) [ 15,863 30 16,116.07
(f) Non Current Tax Assets [Net] 7 29.1% 40.36
(gl | Other Non-Current Assats 8 1,970.12 1,853.94
71,086.79 75,169.33
[21 CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Inventories 9 1,799,71 2,029.69
() Flnancial Assets
(J) Trade Recelvables 10 £649.53 643.83
{ii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 560.30 558.16
{lii) Bank Balances other than {li) above 12 0.68 45.40
(iv) Others Financial Assets 13 6.66 151.44
{c) Other Current Assets 14 1,559.90 1,675.96
4,576.78 5105.48
TOTAL 75,663.57 80,274.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(3} Lquity Share Capital 15 37,568.48 37,968.48
{b) Uther Equity 16 {36,588.75) (32,425.76)
1,379.73 5,542.72
LIABILITIES .
[1] MNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} financial Liabilities
Otker frnancial Liahilities 17 544.65 908.71
(B} Provisions 18 723.21 827.35
1,267.86 1,536.05
[2] CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a} Financial Llabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 4,424.28 4,473.25
{ii)Trade Payables 20
Total gutstanding dues of Micre Enterprise and Small
Enterprise 14.81 24.09
Tota! gutstanding dues of creditors ather than Micro
Enterprise and Small Cnterprise 6,481.72 5,206.00
{ii{) Other Financlal Uabilities 21 4,636.17 6,266.25
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 57,421.87 57,188.47
{c) Provistons 23 37.13 37.98
73,015.98 73,196.04
TOTAL 75,663,57 80,274.81
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal 11053
statements.
As per our separate report of even date attached
For CHATURVEDI NERS For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accoufitants
Registration No{ 3070£8BE >\,
/ /,.—_\ ‘”. ~
3 CIARTERED | =1} 3 :
Sunny R B Singh
Partner or Diractor
M No 500819 DIN 00008293 DIN 00229692
Place : Mew Delhi 5 t C Stephen
Dated : May 21, 2019 CFO Company Secretary




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED
U26940CT2007PLCO20250

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
For the For the
Partlcular NOTE Year Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
1. Revenue From Operations 24 27,644.35 20,359.87
II. Other Income 25 347.77 547.51
1. Total Income(I+I1) 27,992.12 20,907.37
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 3,395.32 3,041.17
Changes In Inventories of finished goods and work-In-progress 27 420.08 41.91
Exclse Duty - 518.07
Emplayee Benefits Expense 28 2,888.41 2,932.68
Finance Cost 29 1,209.13 1,227.39
Depreciation and Ammortization Expenses 4 3,868.77 3,880.48
Other Expenses 30 20,109.58 15,058.2¢
Total Expenses {(1V) 31,891.29 26,700.98 |
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax {III-IV) (3,899.17) {5,793.61)
Exceptiona! ltem - -
V. Profit before tax (3,899.17) (5,793.61)
VI. Tax Expenses:
Current Tax - -
Deferrad Tax 41 (d} {252.00) 1,589.87
Tax related to earlier vear {13.50) -
Total Tax Expensa(VI) (265.50) 1,589.87
VII. Profit/{Loss) for the year[V-VI} (4,164.67) {4,203.74)
VIII. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
-Remeasurement of deflned benefit plans 2.44 11,96
(i) Income tax relating to (tems that will not be reclassified to profit
ar loss (0.76) {3.69)
B {i) ltems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
{ii) Income tax relating {0 ltems that will be reclassified to profit or
loss - -
IX. Total Compreheénsive Income for the year [VII+VIII)
(Comprising profit/(loss) and Other comphrensive Income for
for the year] (4,162.98) {4,195.47)
Earning per share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each)
Basic 51 [(1.10) [1.11)
Diluted {1.10) {1.11)
The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these financlal 1tc 53

statements.

As per our separate report of even date attached
For CHATURVEDI & PARTNERS

Chartered Accou nts ——
Regrstrﬂ?on N 70535’\ l )|

/\\_\ e
%ga\hansar

Partner
M No 500819

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 21, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

CFOQ

IN 00008293

7

ant

—

R B Siitgh
Director
DIN 00225692

-

Uy Yo

C Stephen
Company Secretary




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LTD.
U26940CT2007PLC0O20250

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

Amount in Lakhs})

For the year ended For the year ended

Partlculars Mar 31, 2019 May 31, 2018
A.Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss)/Prafit Before Tax (3,899,17) (5,793.61}
Adjustment for:
Depreclation and Amortisation Expense 3.868.77 3,880.48
interesy Income (23.08) {46.98)
Excess provision written back {224.56) {450.69)
Loss on salefdlscard of Property, plant and equlpgment 18.84
Allowance for bad debts - 17.29
Advances / Receivables written off 237.69 -
Finance Costs 1,206.13 1,227.39
Operating Proflt / (Loss) before working capital changes 1,187.62 (1,166.,12)
Changes In Working Capltal :
{Increase)/decrease In Inventories 229.58 (70.48)
{increasel/decrease in Trade Recalvables {3.70) {535.71)
{Increase)/decrease in Other financial gssets 154,96 8.73
{Increase)/¢ucrease in Other Current and Non Current Asselts 39.88 268.97
Incregse/{decrease} In trade payable 1,266.43 {3.822.28)
Ircrease/(decraase) in other financial liabilitles (2,010.95) {15,554.97)
Increase/{decraase) in Other current ilabilitles and provislan 8.42 21,114,91
Cash {used in) / gqenerated from Ope¢ratlons B70.564 243.06
Net Incomme Tax Refund / {palady {2.33) 7.37
Net Cash {usedin ) / generated frem pperations 568.31 250.43
B, Cash flaw from investing ectivitles
furchase of property alant and equipments {inclugtng Capital Advances) {11.79) 11.78
tal lnvestment in Bank Flxed Deposit 45,72 {2.23}
Interest Recelved 31.83 35.79
Net cash used In Investing activities 65.80 45,34
C. Cash flow from financlng activitles
Froceeds from Short Term Borrowlngs [ net of repayments) (48.96) {0.75)
Interest and Finance Charges Paid {883.03) {156.46)

Net cash ganeratad from flnancing actlvities (931.99) {157.21
Neb incresse / (decrease) In cash and cash gqutvalents (A+8+C) 2,12 138.56
Cash and cash equivslents at the beginning of the year 5oB.17 419,61
Cash and cash equivalents at the end pf the year 560.29 558.17

1. Cash fiow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set cut in 1nd AS 7, specified under section 133 of the

Companies acl, 2013,

2, Fiqures in bracket represents ¢ash outflaw,
3 Cash & cash eguivalents includes:

Cash in Hand 3.13 17,11
Balance with Banks
- In Current Accounts 557.17 541.08
560.30 558.16
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these flnancisl 1to 52
statements.
For and on behalf of Board
In terms of our report attached
For CHATURVEDI & PARTNERS CHARTERED - 3
Chartered Accountants ~ \ACCOUNTANTS / = SunnyjGaur RB
Firm Registration Na. 30 E s Dire Director
00008293 DIN 002296592
AN MAHANSA 7/ W_w,]
Partner
Mermbership M6, 500819 n C Stephen
Place . New Delhi CFO Company Secretary

Date : May 21, 2019
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BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007P1.C020250)
Notes 10 financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Company Overview

Bhilal Jaypee Cement Umlted (the Company) having Its registered office at Bhilai Jaypee
Grinding Plant, Bhilal Steel Plant Premises, Slag Road, Bhilal-490001, India, {s a Public Limited
Company demiciled in India and is incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. The company Is engaged in the buslness of manufacture and sale of Cement and Clinker.
The company has its manufacturing facllmes in India and sale of product in India and outside
India.

2, Recent accounting pronouncement
Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Minlstry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116
wilt replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The
Standard sets out the principles for the recognitlon, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract I.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 Introduces a
single lessee accounting medel and requlres a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of maore than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value,
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Less. The Standard
aiso contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantia(Iy carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17,

The effective date For adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019, The standard permiis two possible methods of transition:

+ Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8
Accounting Polictes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

- Modified retrospective - Retrospeciively, with the cumulatlve effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application.

tUnder modlfied retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease lfabllity as the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of
use asset elther as:

« Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

. An 2mount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepald or accrued lease
payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of
initial application.

- Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

Effective date for applicatlon of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1,
2019, The Company is currently evaluatlng the effect of this amendment on the ﬂnanclal
statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notifled Ind AS 12 Appendix C,
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the
determination of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to
the appendix, the company needs to assess whether it Is probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used or a treatment which is being proposed to
be used In its income tax filings.

BHILAT JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAT JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.1

3.2

3.3

The effective date for adeption of Ind AS 12 Appendlx C is annual pericds beginning on or after
April 1, 2019 and the Company Is currentty evaluating the effect of this amendment on the
financlal statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS
12, 'Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment ciarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in prefit or loss, other comprehenslve in¢ome or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions or events.,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginnlng on or after April 1,
2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial
statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtallment or settlement-

Cn March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments t¢ Ind AS 19, ‘Employee
Benefits’, In connection with accountlng for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entlty:

- to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtallment or settlement; and

- to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any
reguction in a surplus, even (f that surplus was not previously recognised because of Lhe
impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annua) period beginning on or after April 1,
2019, The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Significant Accounting policies
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and the relevant provistons of Companies Act, 2013 as applicable.

Basis of preparation

These financlal statements are prepared in accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Sectlon 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation
requirements of Division II to Schedule III te the Act under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value,

Accounting policies have been consistentiy applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is tnitially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto In use.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with the Ind AS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financlal
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Although these estimates are based upon the management's
hest knowledge of current events, actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptlons and condltions.

BHILAIJAYPEL CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019
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BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26340CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2019

The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accountlng estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments In the process of applying the Company's accounting pollcies, management
has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized In the financial statements:

Discount rate used to determine the carrylng amount of the Company’s defined
benefit obligation: In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India,
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent
with the currencies ¢f the post-employment benefit obligation.

Contingences and commitments: In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may
arise from fitigations and other clalms against the Company. Where the potential llabilities have
a low probabllity of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably, company treat them as
contingent llabilities. Such liabilitles are disclosed In the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the
legal proceedings, the company do not expect them te have a materfally adverse impact on the
financial position or profitability.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid / recovered
for uncertain tax positions and adjustment of deferred tax assets against future taxabie income.

Useful llves of property, plant and equipment: The Company reviews the estimated usefu!
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
During the current financial year, the management determined that there were no changes [o
the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and eguipment.

Allowances for doubtful debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade and other recelvables. The identification of doubtfu!
debts requires use of judgment and estimates.

3.4 Operating Cycle and Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
ciassificatlon in accordance with Part-I of Division- I1 of Schedule III of the Companles Act,
2013,

An asset is treated as current when It (a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed In normal operating cycle; (b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or (¢}
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or (d) The asset is cash
or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle & fiability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when {a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or {b) It is
held primarily for the purpose of traging; or (c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period, or {d} There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability
for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, results in its sattlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification. The Company classifies all ather liabilities as non-current,

The operating cycie Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisatlon in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
normal operating cycle.

BHILAIJAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.5

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to recelve in exchange for those
goods Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point fin time when control is
transferred to the customer which is usuaily on dispatch / delivery.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which Is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, Incentives, and returns, if
any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from
customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are
estimated (using the most likely methed) based on accumulated experience and underlying
schemes and agreemenis with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to
custamers, there is no financing component in the contract.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method whereby the
effect of applying this standard is recegnised at the date of Initial application {i.e. 1 Apri,
2018). Accordingly, the comparative infarmation in the Statement of Profit and Loss is not
restated. Impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 (s not material.

Cost to obtain a contract

The Compeany pays sales commission to its selling agents for contracts that they obtain for
the Company. The Company has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs ta
obtain a contract which 2llows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions
(included in selling and distribution expense under other expenses).

Casts to fulfill a contract i.e, frelght, insurance and other selling expenses are recognized as
an expense in the period In which related revenue is recognised.

Interest income Interest income is accrued on 2 time basis, by reference to the principal
ocutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividends Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,

Profit/Loss on sale of units of Mutual funds/Bonds/Shares are accounted on transfer of
ownership.

Segment Reporting

The company is exciusively engaged in the business of cement and cement related products {i.e.
clinker) as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, hence, there are no reportable business segments. However, Geographical segment
is applicable as company s exporting clinker to Nepal.

Foreign Currencies

Functional and presentation Currencies: The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions and translations: Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign-currency-
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency
at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses resuiting from such
translations are included in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabllities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Nen-
meonetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a forelgn currency and measured
at historica) cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.

Transaction gains or losses reallzed upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are
included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled. Revenue,
expense and cash flow {tems denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevani
functional currencies using the exchange rate In effect on the date of the transaction.

BHILAIJAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2067PLC020250)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE} are initially recognized at cost. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade
discounts and rebates. The cost of PPE includes interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly
attributable to acquisition, construction or production of quallfying assets subsequent to initial
recagnition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreclatlon (other than freehold land,
which are stated at cost) and Impalrment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it |s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced, All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting peried in which
they are incurred.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there 15 no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and useful! lives.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress} less their residuai vatues over the useful lives, using the stralght- ling
method ("SLM™) In the manner prescribed in schedule 11 to the Act, Management believes based
on a technical evaluation {which is based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of
the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditlons of the asset, past history of
replacement, antlclpated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance
support, etc.) that the useful lives of the assets as considered by the company reflect the
pericds over which these assets are expected to be used. Such classes of assets and their
estimated useful lives are as under;

[S. No. | Nature of Asset/Component of an Assets Useful (ife of assets/components of
assets

1 Building 30-60 years
2 Plant and Equipment 25 years

3 Electrical Equipment i 10 years

=S Power Generation Unit 40 years
5 Furniture and Fixtures 10 years B
6 Cifice Equipment 5 years . o
7 Vehicles B-10 years

8 Computer Software 6 years o

Cost of leasehold Land is being amortized over the period of lease term.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in clrcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end
to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embedied in
the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assetl. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an (tem of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in financial statements.

Capital work-in-progress and intangibie assets under deveiopment

Capital work-in-progress/intanglble assets under development are carried at cost, comprising
direct cost, related Incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.10

3.11

3.12

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initlal recognition at cost and subsequently are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

An infangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses cn derecognition are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or logs within other gains/{losses).

The Company amortizes intangfble assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method
over the useful lives determined by the terms of the agreement /contract. The estimated useful
life Is reviewed annually by the management.

Impairment of Assets

Financial assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss
associated with fts financial assets. The impairment methodoiogy applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, For trade receivables only, the Company
applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized frorn initlal recognition of the receivables.

PPE and intangibles assets: Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite
life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. If any such indicaticn exists, the recoverahle amount {i.e.

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount |s determined for the cash-generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is
estimated to be less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is
reduced to s recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferréed tax asset
or liabllity during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to ltems that are recognized in other comprehensive fncome or
directly in equlty, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax: Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the
taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the income Tax
Act, 1961, Current tax assets and current tax llabllities are off set when there Is a legally
enforceahle right to set the recognized amounts and there Is an intention to settle the asset and
the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only fo the extent that it is probable that either future
taxable profits or reversai of deferred tax liabilities will be available, against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufflcient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
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BHILAIJAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial staterents for the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets and iizbilitles are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perled and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability Is settled. Deferred
tax assets and liabillitles are offset when there is a legally enforceabie right to set current tax
assets and liahilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax credlt is recognized &s deferred tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is revlewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT
credit asset is written down to the extent there Is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

3.13 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

Operating Lease: Qperating lease payments are recognized as an expense (n the Statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where another systematic
hasis I1s more representative of the time pattern in which econamic benefits from leased assets
are consumed. The aggregate benefit of incentives (excluding in infiationary increases where
rentals are structured solely to increase In line with the expected general! inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the year
in which the benefits accrue) provided by the lessor is recognized as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a stralght-line basis,

Finance Lease: Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the
Company at their falr value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Balance
Sheet as a finance lease ¢bligation. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease. Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the
lease obligation so0 as to achleve a constant rate of interast on the remalning balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributabie to qualifying assets, In which case they are capitaiized in accordance with the
Company’s general pollcy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

3.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabllities:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obllgation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a relfable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle
the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time vatue of money Is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its
present value using 2 current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required te settle the obligation or a rellable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.15 Inventories

Raw Materials and stores and parts are valuated at lower of cost on Welghted Average Cost and
net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished product in which they will be
incorporated/ use are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and stares and
spares is determined on weighted average cost method.

Work in progress and finished goods are valuated at lower of cost on Weighted Average Cost
and net realizable value, Cost includes direct matertal, labor, cost of conversion and other
overheads incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

Saleable scrap, whose cost is not identifiable, is valuated at net reallizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion/costs necessary to make the sale.

3.16 Non-derivative financlal instruments

Financlal assets and liabllities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to \he
contractual provisions of the Instrument. Financial assets and liabllities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financlal liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

a. Investments and Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments,
which are readily convertible Into known amounts of cash that are subject te an insignlficant risk
of change In value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks,
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Trade Receivables and Loans:; Trade receivables are Initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequently, these assets are held at amortized cost, vsing the effective interest rate (EIR)
method net of any expected credit losses, The EIR is the rate that discounts eslimated future
cash income through the expected life of financlal instrument.

Debt Instruments: Debt Instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’} or fair value through profit or loss (CFVTPL) till
derecognition on the basls of (i) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets
and (if) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Equity Instruments: All investments |n equity instruments classified under financlal assets are
initially measured at fair value; the Company may, on initial recegnition, Irrevocably elect to
measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL, The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basls.

b. Investments and Financial assets - Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortized cost: Financial assets are subseguently measured at amortized
cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal ameount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial
assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
that give rise on specifled dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.
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BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC920250)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.17

3.18

™

Financial assets at falr velue through profit or loss {FVTPL): Financial assets are
measured at falr value through profit or (035 unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognitian. The transaction costs directty
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss
are Immediately recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings: After initial recognltion, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subseguently measured at amottized cost on accrual basis.

Financial liabiilties - Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest meathod. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, carrying amounts
approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecoegnition of financial instrument

The Company de-recognizes a financlal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifles for
derecognition under Ind AS 109. A flnanclal liability (or a part of financial liabllities) is de-
recognized from the company’s balance sheet when the obllgation specified in the contract Is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set and the net amount is reported in financial
statements If there Is a currently enferceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical
trend, industry practices and the buslness environment in which the equity operates or any
other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant Increase In credit risk.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the pericd of time that is required te
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowlng costs eligible for capitalization.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are Incurred,

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits consist of contribution to employee’s state Insurance, provident fund, gratuity
fund and compensated absences.

Post-employment benefit plans
Defined Contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labor weffare
fund, employee pension scheme etc, are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
Company‘s pravident fund contribution s made te a government administered fund and charged
as an expense o the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined
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Notes to financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2019

Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further deflned obligations beyond the monthly
contributions.

Defined beneflt plans:

The Company operates defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity. The liability or asset
recognized in the balance sheet in respect of Its defined benefit ptans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation Is
caiculated annuglly by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
said obllgation Is determined by discounting the estimated Future cash out flows, using market
yields of gavernment bonds that have tenure approximating the tenures of the related liability.

The Iinterest expense is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liabillty or asset. The net interest expense on the net defined henefit liability or asset is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprebensive
income. They are Included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtaliments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Compensated Absences

The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment
and availment, as per the policy of the Company. The liabiiity towards such unutilized ieave as
at the year end |s determined based on independent actuarial valuation and recognized in the
Statament of Profit and Loss.

The classification of the company’s net obligation into current and non- current Is as per the
actuarial valuatlon report,

The Company treats accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months,
as long term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial vaiuation using the projected unit credit
method at the end of each financial year. The Company presents the leave as current liability in
the balance sheet; to the extent it dees not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement
bheyong 12 months after the reporting date. Where the Company has unconditional legal and
contractual right to defer the settlement for the period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current lability.

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful iife are not subject to amortizatien
and are tested annuaily for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment wherever events gr
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds [ts
recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately Identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financlal assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possitle
reversal of the impairment at the end of such reporting period.

3.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at net of transition costs incurred and measured at amortized
cost. Any difference between the prospects (net of fransaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in the Statement of Proflt and Loss over the period of the borrowing using
the effective interest method.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classifled as
liabilities. The divideng on these preference shares is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
as finance costs.
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3.21 Manufacturing and operating expenses

The Company classifies separately manufacturing and operating expenses which are directly
tinked to manufacturing and service activitles of the company.

3.22 Earnings per share {EPS)

Basic EPS Is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the welghted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. -
Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all
dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

3.23 Fair Value Measurement:-

The Company, If need be, measures certain financial instruments at falr value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiilty

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair
value of an asset or a liablllty is measured using the assumptions that market particlpants would
use when pricing the asset or llability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and fer which
sufficlent data are available to measure falr value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair vatlue is measured or disclosed in the financlal statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuaticn technlques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement Is unobservable.

For assets and liabillties that are recognised in the financtal statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the towest level input that is signiflcant to the falr value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabliities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreefng the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.
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The Management also compares the change In the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value dlsclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabllities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explalned above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other falr value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes,
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Note 4
PROPERTY PLANT AMD EQUIPMENTS
[Rs. in Lakhs
TANGIBLE ASSETS Cther Iatangible
Asset
Gross Black LAND LAND PLANT & ELECTRICAL —“M—HMMH..—.%mZM. RATLWAY FURNITURE OFFICE Imnn.zu NING ToTAL
v K
FREEHOLD | LEASEHOLD BUILDINGS MACHINERY | INSTALLATION | INSTALLATIC SIDING EHICLES AND FIXTURES | EQUIPMENTS TATAL| RE hmmzmlb_.w.noz
NS

As at April 1, 2017 1,3R2.62 1,240.79 5,327.62 75.484.72 321.93 27.438 4,580.73 143,86 172.99 458.84 89,i52.48 41.99 89,234.47
Additions durng the year - - - - - - - - - 1.62 1.62 - 1.62
Disposals during the year - - - - - - - . {103} - (0.03) - (0.03)
As at March 31, 20138 1,3B2.62 1,240.79 5,327.62 75,484.72 321.83 37.48 4.580.73 144.86 1:2.86 500.46 £9,194.07 41.99 §9,235.05
Additipns during the year 607 - - - - - - - 130 5.04 11.41 - 11.41
Disposals during the - - - [15.80 (0.52} (1.63) - {9.75) {23523 {26.34} (?7.537) - (77.57)
As at March 31, 2059 1,38E.6% 1,240.73 5,327.62 75,458.52 321.41 35.65% 4,580.73 135.10 145.64 479.15 89,127.91 41.89 85, 169.90
Accumulated Depreciatron &
Amortisation -
As at April 1, 2017 - 153.53 1,404.57 25,088.45 52,23 12.24 1.461.78 1.24.05 127.34 337.24 28,831.54 25.36 28,857.400
Depreciation/amotisation for the
year - 7343 316.98 3,135.85 27.80 3.05 272,73 5.12 14.37 30.04 3,878.37 2.10 3,880.47
 Baducilons/other afjustments - : - - - - - - 203y - {0.03] - {0.03)
As at March 31, 2018 - 255.94 1,721.5%8 28,224.30 120.03 15.29 1,734 51 129.20 141.68 36738 32,709.88 27.56 32, 737.94
Depredation Amp on ior the
year - 72.43 314.97 3,1358% 22.52 205 272,73 366 11.93 22.53 3.866.69 2.10 3.368.78
Deductions/other adjstments - = (7.16% (8,49 (9.78} - (%271 (20,123 {23.38% (63.201 - 163,200
As at March 3%, 2019 - 328.37 2,038.52 31,352.99 i47.06 17.56 2,007,24 123.59 133.49 366.53 36,5133 29.56 36,543.01
Net Block
As at March 31, 2019 1.388B.69 91242 3,259.10 $4,115.93 174.35 18.29 2,573.49 11.51 1415 112.63 52,614.56 12,33 $2,626.39
As at March 3%, 20318 1,382.62 984.85 3,606.07 £7,260.42 201.90 22.19 2,846.22 15.66 3118 133.08 56,484.19 14.43 56,498.62
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___{Rs. |n lakhs)
As ol Ag at
PARTICULARS Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
MNATE S
OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured cansidered good
Security Deposit 3493.99 412.82
393.59 412.82
NOTE &
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS [(NET) (Refer note 34 & 41 {d) )
Deferrad Tax Assets
Carry Forward Losses 25,335.05 25,842.84
Temporary ONferences 619.78 414,40
25,954.83 16,297.24
Oeferred Tax Llabllitles
Cepreclation 10,091.53) {10,181.17}
10,091,53) {10,181.17])
5,863.30 16,116.07
NOTE 7
NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)}
-Advance Tax and Tax Deducted At source [Refer note 41{ch) 29.19 40.36
29.19 40.36
NOTE 8
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured consldered good unless otherwise stated
Capltal Advances = 547.13 556,08
Prepald Expenses - .41
Security Deposlt 23.1% 23.198
Deposit under protest (Refer note 31 & 37) 1,359.90 1,114.26
_1,970.12 1,893.94
*Amount of Rs. 62 lakhs has been reclassified for the year ended March 31, 2018 from Capital Advances 9 Advance to Suppliers.
NOTE 9§
INVENTORIES
(A5 taken, valued & certifed by the Managameant)
Raw Materials * 278.43 83.62
Stares & Spare Parts* 1,248.29 1,253.00
Finished Goods - -
Work-ln-Prucess 272,99 693,07
__1,799.73 2,029.69
*Coal has been rectassified trom Raw Materlal to Stores and Spares.
NOTE 1Q
TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Refer note 53)
Current Flnancial Assets
Trade Recsivables, consldered Goods - Secured - -
Trada Recelvables - consldered Goods -Unsacured 549,53 643.83
Trade Receivables which have sionlficant Increase In credit risk 17.29 17.29
Trade Receivaples - Credle Impalred - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade recefvables (17.29) (17.29}
649.53 543.83
Tha mavement in aliowance far doubtful trade recelvables
dalance as at beginning of the year 17.29 -
Aflowance for doubtful trade recelvables during the year - 17,29
Allowance for debitful trade recelvables ot the vear end 17.29 17.29
Trade Recalvatles Includes Rs. 530,24 lakhs{ Previgus Year: Rs. 530.24 lakhs)
due from related party,
NOTE 11
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with Banks
= In Current Accounts 557.17 541.05
Cash an hand 313 17.11
560,30 558.16
NOTE 12
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE
Term 2eposits with remaining Maturity less than 12 months Q.68 46.40
0.68 46.49
*margin money for issue of bank guarantees
NOTE 13
OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured cansiderad goad
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits and others 6.66 15.40
Clakm and Other Recelvable - 136.04
6.66 151.44




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED

U26940CT2007PLCD20250
{R3. In lakha}
As at As at i
PARTICULARS Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
NOTE 14 ‘
OTHER CURRENT AS5ETS
Advances to Suppllers, Corntractors 8 Others (Refer nota 53) 792.01 711.45
Advance to employses 127.92 81.70
Balance with government authorities 554,22 §28.34
Prepald Expenses ! 75.75 54.47
1,559.90 1,675.96
MNOTE 15
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorisad
380,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3B,000.00 38.000.00
(Previous Year- 380,000,000 Shares of Rs,10/- )
38,090.00 38,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up
379,684,800 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully pald-up
37,068,448 37,968.48
{Previpus Year-379,684,800 Shares gf Rs,10/- each fully pajd-up]
37,968.48 37.968.4B
Note 15.1, Recancillatlan of the number of the shares cutstanding
Az at Ar at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
: No. of Sharey maunt __Na. of Shares Amount
a) Equity sharas of Rs 10/- each —
Shares gutstanding at the beginning of the year 375,684,800 3,796,848,000 379,684,800 3,796,848,000
Sharegs |ssued durlng the year - - i - -
Shares putstanding at the end of the year 479,584,800 3,796,848,000 379,684,800 3,796,848,040

Note 15.2: The Rights attached to the each clause of shares
The Company has anly gne class of equity shares having a face value of Rs,10 per share and each holder of equlty shares Is entitled to one vote per
share, All equity Share holders are having right to get dividend In praportion fo pald up value of the each equity share, s and when declared.

In the event ¢f liquidation each sharehaider carrles egual rights end will be entitlad to recelve equal ameunt per share out of the remalning amount
avellable with the company after making preferentizl payments.

Hote 15.3 The shares held by the holding company
280,965,752 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Reld by Jalprakash Asseclates Umikad, the nolding company.{Previous vear 280,965,752 Equity shares)

Nate 15.4 Detalfs of shareholder holding more than 5% equlty shares:

Ag at As at
Name of Shareholder March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Percantage | No. of shareg hold Percontage | No, of shareg hold
Equlty shares of Rs 10/- each___
Jalprakash Assoclatas Limited™ 74.00% 280,966,752 74.00% 280,965,752
Steel Authority of India Lid. 26.00% 98,718,048 26.00% 28,718,048

* Jalprakash Associates Lid.(JAL), the holding company had pledged 30% of the shares of the company and alse agreed and signed a Npn-Disposal
Undertaking {NDU) for the remalning 44% shares in favour of Yes Bank Ltd, (YBL} a5 a collatera) securtty agalnst the loan facllity of As.455 crare avallad
by Jaypee Cement Corporation Lid. (JCCL), a wholly-own subsidlary of JAL,

¥BL, unllaterally on (s own withaut Intimating JAL and In conjunction with Assets Care 2nd Reconstruction Entgrprises Lid. (ACRE), a3ssigned the lgan
alongwith securlty In favour of ACRE, who converted the balance 44% of shares pledged and Invoked the pledge and transferred the entire pledged
sharas In its favour. JAL has nelther taken cognlzance of the asslgnment of the foan and security by YBL In favour of ACRE nor conversion ¢f NDU Inte
pladge and Invocation of pledge and transfer of shares (n fts name. JAL continues to show the Investment In Its books of accounts as the shareholders
agreemant with SAIL, tha J¥ partner |n the company , provides that a purported transfer not in accordance with the terims of Shareholder Agreement
shall be null and void.

The company has thergfore malntalned status quo ante of the shareholding in its Books of Accounts though depasitery has transferred the shares (n the
name of ACRE,

NOTE 16

OTHER EQUITY

Caplial reserve 4,259.B7 4,289.87

Ratatned earnings (40,864,.80) (36,700,13)

Sther comprehensive Income (13.B2} [15.507
{36,588.75) (32,425,761

e
2 CHARTERED
e \ACCOUNTANTS -




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED
U26940CT2007PLCOZ0250

(Rs. in Inkhs)
As at Ag at

PARTICULARS Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capltzl Reserve
Capltal Reserve represents funding of cost overrun by Jaiprakash Assoclates Limited upto March 31, 2013 In the terms of Shareholders Agreement, This
reserve is rot freely avallable for distribution ko the shareholders.

Retained Earnlngs
Retained Eamings are the prolk or loss that the company has earned Il date, less any transfers to General Reserve, Dividend or other distributions palg

to sharetolders.

NOTE 17
Other Flnanclal Llabllides
Unsecured coaskiered good

Security Deposit 544.565 908.71
544.65 208.71
NOTE 18
NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Mining Restaration Liabillty (Refer note 18.1) 217.27 i93.98
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Graluity fRafer note 40) 309.83 258.46
Leave Encashment {Refer note 40) 186,11 174.91
723.21 627.35
Mote - 18.1 : Mining Restaratian Llabjlity
At the beglnning of the Year 191,98 173.20
Urwinding of Hscount 23.25 20.79
Balanre as at Reporting Date 217.27 193,98
NOTE 19
BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS
Warking Capital Loans from Banks

Il.gans from Aank {Cash Credit)** 4,424.28 4,473.25

4,424.28 4,473.25
*+* Cash credit loan @ 3.75% above tase rate Secured agalnst Flrst Charge on all the current assets of the company and personal Guarantee of Sh.
Mangj Gaur (chairman of Jayee Group)

The Bank has not enaryged interest In Cash Credit Account due I default In payment of Interest and non-adherence t the inanclal discipline stiputated
ty the bank and accepted by the Company, Hence, default Interest to the tune aof Rs. 1,125.12 lakhs (Previous year Rs, 1081.02 lakhs) ag on March 31,
2019 has peen disclosed as "Dther Financtal Liabllites". The Bank has adjusted the gayments made by the company against Interest through loan
account,

NOTE 20

TRADE PAYABLES

{Refer Note 53}

Tatal autstanding dues of Micro Entarprise ang Small Enterprise 14.81 24.09

Total gutstanding cues ¢f creditors otihar than Micra 6,481,722 5,206.C0
Enterprise anc Small Enterprise

6,496.53 5,220.0%
* Statutory dues amawating to Rs. 77 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been reclassified to conform with “Statutory Dues Payable” under
"Other current llabillties”

NOTE 21

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Interest accrued and due on barrowing 1,125.12 1,081.02

[nterest oayable -MSME 15.72 -

Cther Payables
- Salary, wages and benefits paysbie 355.83 240.74
- Caplai Creaitors 60.71 104.95
- DuE to Relateqd Parties {Refer note 49) 31,072.89 4,B39.54
- Dther Payaies 5.90 -

4,536,17 6 ,266.25
* Interest on Statutory dues amaunting to Rs. 711 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2016 has been reclassifiod to conform with "Statutory Dues
Payable” under “Otnher current ilabllities”

MNOTE 22

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory Dues Payable 3,910.65 3,016.36
Advarnces from Rglated party for material {Refer note 49) 51,177.73 51,1772.73
advances from Customers ather than related party 2,333.49 2,094.38

57,421.87 57,188.47
* Rs, 788 Lakns related te Statutory dues far the year ended March 31, 2018 has been reclassified from "Trade payablo” & “Other financlal Llablllties” to
conform with current year classtficetlon.

NOTE 23

PROVISICNS

Provisions for Empisyvee Benefits
-For Gratulty {Refer note 40] 19.7B 19.44
-Fur Leave Encashment {Refer 40) 17.34 18.54

37.12 37.98

Ly el

el




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED
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For the year snde

{R5. In lakbs
For the year endée
Mar 31, 2018

Particulars Mar 31, 2019
NOTE 24
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Product (Refer note 48) 27.630.40 20,238.82
Cther operating revenyas 13.96 121.05
27,644.36 20,359.87
NOTE 24.1
Disaggregation of Revenue
Ravenue based on Geoaraphv
Domestic 13,680.05
Export 13,964.31
Revenue from operations 27,644.36
Revenue based on Business Sagment
There Is no operating seament of the company.
NOTE 24.2
Reconclillatlon of Revenue from cperatlons with contract price
Products
Cemant/Clinker )
Contract price 28,527.76
Lasg: Swap Sales (135.67)
Cash Dlscounts and other Rebates {747.73),
Total Revenue from operations 27,644.36
HNOTE 25
OTHER INCOME
Interast Income 23.08 45.98
Excess provislon written back 224,56 450.69
Miscellsnsous income 100.13 49.84
347,77 547.91
NOTE 256
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Limestone 3,005.55 2,209.25
Laterite / Iron ore 218.00 147.35
Gypsum 6.35 15.68
Slag 115.81 553.82
Clinker 185.28 $51.66
Less ; Swap Purchasa (135.67) (436.59)
49.61 115.67
3,395.32 3,041,17
NOTE 27
CHMANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOQODS
AND WORK IN PROGRESS
OPENING STOCKS
Finished geods - 151,29
Work-ln-process 593,07 508.50
593.07 759.79
LESS:CLOSING STOCKS
Finlshed gouds - -
Work-In-process 272.99 853.07
272.99 693.07
Exclse duty on Increase/{decrease) in closing stock - {24,81)
420,08 41,91




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED
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Particulars

or tha year ende
Mar 31, 2019

Rs, In lakhs
ar the year ende

Mar 31, 2018

NOTE 28

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and bonus ele,

Contributlon to provigent and other funds (refer nate 40)
Gratuity/leave encashment (refer note 40)

Staff welfare

NOTE 23

FINANCE COSTS

Intesrest Expenses
-Interest on Borrowings and others

-Unwinding [nterest

NOTE 30
OTHER EXPENSES
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Facking materlals consumed
Stores and spares consumed (Refer note 46)

Repairs and maintenance (Plant and Machinery)
Hire charges and lease rent of machinery

POWER AND FUEL*
Electriclty and athers
Coal consumed

* Reclassified from Cost of material consumed
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Leading , transportation and other charges
Commission on szles

Sales promotion

2.616.78 2,673.01
157.86 134.66
79.71 81.62
34.06 43.39
2,888.41 2,932.68
1,185.85 1,206.61
23.28 20.78
1,209.13 1,227.39
47.84 142.36
47.B4 142.36
563.21 620.03
294.86 383.05
21,94 34,15
BED.D1 1,037.23
5,060.25 3,781.64
12,187.23 7,736.25
17,247.48 11,517.89
18,175.33 12,697.48
289.22 468.78
45.56 30.66
1.50 0.17
336.28 499.51
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Particulars

Faor the year endad
Mar 31, 20189

{Rs. In lakhs
For the year enda
Mar 31, 2018

ESTABLISHED EXPENSES

Repair and Malntenance

Safety and Securlty Exp

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Indirect Taxes

Insurance

Travelling Exp

Postage, Telephone and Internet

Legal and Professional Expenses

Vehicle Hire and Running Charges

Bank Charges and Guarantee Commission
Auditors' Remuneration

-Statutory Audlt Fee

-Relmbursement of Expenses

Tax Audit Fee

Newspaper, Magazine and Advertisement
Printing and Statlonery

Miscellaneous Exp

Advances / Recelvables wrliten off
Allowances for doubtful dabts

Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant and eaulpment

Penalty on Statuory dues

Total Other Expenses

229,20 220,16
522.15 564.92
6B.38 76.32
104,44 3151.81
133.45 368.05
45.20 68.67
15.80 24,13
19.32 32.90
30.81 25.92
18.93 18.63
2.33 16.17
4.00 4.25
0.54 0.04
0.25 0.25
0,11 0.23
2,26 1.98
33.70 45.56
237.69 -
- 17.29
18,84 -
8.87 21.82
1,597.97 1,862.20
20,105.58 15,059,29




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

31,

32.

33,

34.

35,

36.

37.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:
{Rs. In lakhs)

S. As at March | As at March
No, | Particulars 31, 2019 31, 2018
I Disputed Demands (inciudes amount stated in

Note 37)

-VAT/Entry Tax/Excise duty/CST/BOCW Cess 5,686.23 6,063.19

- Property Tax - 137.88

-Workman Cormpensation 1.94 1.94

Amount deposlted against above 1,369.58 1,284.17
II Guarantees

Bank Guarantees issued to Commercial tax - 43.80

Department by the Company.

{100% Margin Money deposited against the same) '

Capital CommIitment

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Estimated value of contracts to be executed on capital 542.17 542.17
account {Net of advances)

The company is exclusively engaged in the business of cement and cement related products {i.e.
clinker) as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, hence, there are no reportable business segments. However, Geograpnical segment
is applicable as caompany (s exporting clinker to Nepal.

The company could not conduct smooth operation at Bhilai plant due to bad market conditions
and financial crunch, therefore management had decided to sale intermediate product (Clinker),
substantial part of this sale attribute to Nepal. Revenues from extermal customers attributed to
forelgn country are Rs, 13,964.31 lakhs (Previous year Rs.10,535.44 iakhs). Non-current assets
located in foreign country Rs. NIL {Previous year R5. NIL).

Deferred tax assets, on business losses, aggregating to Rs. 15,863.30 lakhs have been
recognised on the basls of business plan prepared by the management. The management
believes that, growth in operations of the company will results in its revenue and profitability
and consequently sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets will be realized.

As per Supply agreement, Compensation for short {ifting of annua! agreed quantity of Granulated
Siag works out to be Rs.5,457.48 lakhs vupte March 31, 2019. The Company has, however,
disputed the clalm as the material could not be lifted due to non-furnishing of bank guarantee,
auction of quantity in open rmarket etc, being default of the suppller and the company also have
filed counter claim with the party for contribution loss suffered by the Company. The same being
under negotiation, the company has not provided any expenses during the year.

The company has suffered losses during the year which resulted in increase in accumulated
losses to Rs. 40,878.63 lakhs and completes erosion of its net worth as at March 31, 2019. The
management constdering the future business prospects believes that growth in cperation of the
company will result inte increase in its revenue and consequently profitability and net worth.
Hence the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The company has filed the Writ Petition in Hen’ble High Court of Chhattisgarh against the order
of Commercial Tax Department. Further, the company had filed for the exemption certificate
regarding payment of entry tax which was rejected by the Department of Commerce &
Industries, Chhattisgarh. During the year, the company has filed an appeal before the State
Appellate Forum, Department of Commerce and Industries, (Government of Chhattisgarh)
against the order of the Cepartment of Commerce & Industries, Chhattisgarh. The Management
is confident for favorable cutcome in both the above-mentioned casas. Hance the company has
not made any provislon against entry tax amounting Lo Rs,3,408.62 lakhs {(including interest).

BHILATJAYPEL CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAIJAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial siatements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

Further, Rs5.684.35 lakhs has been deposited against the entry tax demand till date and shown
as part of "Other Non-current Assets” has been considered as good and recoverable.

38. CIF Value of Imports:

{Rs. in lakhs)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Capltal Goods . - -
Stores and Spares - 21.92
39. Disclosure of Financial Leasehold Land as per Ind AS5-17- Leases

The Company has on Lease two Mines of Limestone ML T and ML II in SATNA District taken from
Steel Authority of India Limited for a Period of Twenty year each expiring in October 2021 and
January 2037 respectivaly and One Land from Steel Authorlty of India Limited in BHILAT District
for a period of 30 years explring in June 2037,

{Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars _
Carrylng value of Leaseheld Land 912.41 984.85
{assets)

The company is paying one percent and two percent of one-time land premium as annual ground
rent and annual service charges respectively,

40. Details of Employees Benefits as required by the Ind AS 12 "Employee Benefits” are
given below :

a) Defined contribution plans:
The company has recognized the fellowing amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss
{included in Contribution to provident and other funds):

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Contribution to provident fund 157.73 132.74
Contribution to ESI 0.13 1D

Post Retirement Benefit Plan

b} Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
(Rs. in Lakhs})

Particulars ~ Asat As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Gratuity Leave Gratuity | Leave
Present value of plan liabilities 329.62 | 213.45 282,72 | 193.44
Fair value of plan assets {5.90) - 4.79 - -
Deficit/{Surplus) of funded plans 335.52 | 213.45 277.92 | 193.44
Unfunded plans - - - -
Net plan liabflities/(Assets)* 335.52 | 213.45 277.92 | 193.44

BHILAIJAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)

Nates to financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2019

c) Mavements in plan assets

{Rs. in Lakhs)

d} Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Gratuity Gratuity

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 4,79 27.11 |
the period
Actual return on pfan assets - 1.45
Employer contribution - =
Benefits paid {10.67) (23.81)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the (5.90) 4.79 |
period

Expenses
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Gratuity: _ ]
Current service cost 38.89 26.87 37.06 26.17 |
Interest cost 21.49 14.70 19.67 13.94
Past service cost - - - -
Expected return on plan assets (0.36) - (2.03}) |
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses {2.44) (0.78) | {11.95) 4,43
| Total expenses 57.57 40.79 42.75 44.54
e} Assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Gratuity Leave | Gratuity Leave
Unguoted - - - -
Government Debt Instruments - - - -
Corporate Bonds - - - -
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
QOthers - - ~ -
Total 100% - 100% -
f} Assumptions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
FInancial Assumption
Discount rate 7.65 7.60
Salary Escalation Rate # 5.50 5.50
Demographlc Assumptions
Retirement age (Years) 60 60
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for 100% of JALM 100% of IALM
disability (2006-08) (2006-08)
Attrition ak ages
Up to 30 years 2.00 2.00 ]
- From 31 to 44 years 5.00 5.00
| - Above 44 years 3.00 3.00

BHILAL JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26%40CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to financial staiements for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

g) Sensitivity

{Rs. in Lakhs) _

AsatMarch31,2019 [ As at March 31, 2018 i
Change In Increase In Decreass In Change In Increase In Decrease in |
assumption presant present assumption present present
value of plan | value of plan value of plan value of
liabilitles lahilitles liabllitles plan
llabilitles
Gratuity:
Discount rate 0.50 % (16,28} 17.67 0.50 % {14.19) 15.44
Salary Escalation 0,50 % 17.95 {16.67) 0.50 % 15.69 (14.53)
Rate
Leave:
Dlscount rate 0.50 % {1().46} 11,32 0.50 % {9.60) 10.41
Salary Escalation 0.50 % 11,51 (10.73) 0.50 % 10.57 9.83
Rate

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be
representative of the actual change. It is based on a change. It is based on a change in the key
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the
assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized
in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysls did not change compared with the previous period.

h) The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2019 as

follows:
B (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
2018 19.78 17.34 15.44 18.53
2019 18.86 14.13 15.67 8.49
2020 14,17 11.28 12.85 12.05
- 2021 14.32 7.37 12.85 9,57
2022 11.80 13.54 13.51 6.20
2023 18.17 13.47 10.44 11.17
Thereafter 232.31 136.32 197.83 127.40

The estimate of rate of escalation is salary considered in actuarial valuation, taken into account
inflation, senlority, promotion and other relevant factors inctuding supply and demand in the
employment market. The above information is as certified by the actuary.

41. Income Tax Expense
a) Tax expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Current tax )
Current tax on taxable income for the year ) - -
Total Current tax expense - =
Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge/{credit) {252.00) _ (1,589.87)
MAT credit (taken)/utilized } -
Total deferred income tax expense/{benefit) (252.00} _ (1,589.87)
Tax in respect of earlfer years (13.50) s
| Total income tax expense . {265.50) (1,589.87) |

BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31,2019




BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PLC020250)
Notes to {inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

b) A reconcillation of the Income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory

Income tax rate to the profit before income taxes is summarized below;

(Rs. In Lakhs)

- Year ended Year qnded
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Enacted Income tax rate in India 26.00% 30.90%
applicable to the company
Profit before tax (3,899.17) (5,793.61)
Current tax expense on profit before tax (1013.78) (1,790.23)
expense at the enacted income tax rate Iin
India
Tax effect of the amounts which are not
deductible/(taxable) in calculating
taxable income
Impact of change in tax rate 2686.01 -
Impact of Timing difference including Carry (1420.23) 200.36
forward losses
Income Tax Expense recognized in the 252.00 {1,589.87)
Statement of Profit & Loss
c) Tax assets and liabilities
T {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 20189 March 31, 2018
Current tax assets {net} =~ 29.19 40.36
d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
i (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at April 1 (Credit)/ (Credit)/ | As at March | (Credit)/ | (Credit) | As at March
2017 charged in charged 312018 chargain | fcharge | 31 2019
- ——— —— .| statement directly stateme directly
-Deferred of profit In other | -Deferred nt of in other | “Deferred
tax asseat/ and loss aquity tax asset/ profit aquity tax assat/
liablity Liablllty and loss Liability
Depreciatior (9,845.43) 331.74 | - {10,181.17) (59.64) = 10,091.53
Defarred Tax (9,849.43) 331.74 - | (1p, 18117 (89.64) 10,091.53
Liability {A)
Carry forward losses 24,243.20 | ¢1,633.64) - 25,882,84 547.79 - 25,335.05
Tempgrary
differences 130.12 {287.97) 3.69 414,40 | (206.14) Q.76 619.78
Defarred tax
Assots {(B) 24,379.32 | (1,921.51} 3.69 26,297.24 341.65 0.76 25,954.83
Deferred tax
Assets {net) (A-B) 14,529.89 | (1,589.87) 3.69 16,116.07 | 252,01 0.76 | 15,863,30

42,

42.1 Fair Values

Financial instruments

'Fair value measurement includes both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised
cost and at fair value in the statement of financial position. The carrying values of current
financial Instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these
instruments and the disclosures of falr value are not made when the carrying amount of current

financial instruments Is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

BHILAI JAYPEL CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019
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BHILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED (CIN U26940CT2007PL.C020250)
Notes lo financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

42.2

43.

43.1

BIIILAI JAYPEE CEMENT LIMITED- March 31, 2019

Flnancial Instrument by Category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 are

as follows:
o {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars At amortised At fair At falr Total Total fair
costs value value carrying value
through through value
profit and oCI
loss
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 560.30 - - 560.30 560.30
2ank balance ather than
cash & cash equivalent 0.68 - 3 0.68 0.68
Trade receivable 649,53 - - £49.53 649.53
Other financial assets 400,55 - - 400.55 400.55
Liabllitles
Borrowlngs 4,424.28 - - 4,424.28 4,424.28
Trade payables 6£,494.53 - - 6,496.53 6,496.53
Other financial lability 5,180.82 - - 5,180.82 5,180.82

The carrying value and fair value of flnancial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 are

as follows:
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars At amortised At falr At fair Total Total fair
costs value value carrylng value
through through value
profit and 0cCI
loss
Assets
Cash and cash squivalents 558.16 = 558.16 558.16
Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalent 46.40 46.40 46.40
Trade receivable £43.82 643,82 643.82
Other financlal assets 564,26 564.26 564.26
Llabilitles
Borrowings 4,473.25 4,473.25 4,473.25
Trade pavyables _5,230.09 5,230.09 5,230.09
Cther financial liability 7174.96 7174.96 717495

Financial risk management objectives and policies

‘The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyses the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reftect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Management has overall responsibillty for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework.

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the
Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk.

Credit risk on financial assets

Credit risk refers to the risks of defaults on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a
financial loss. The Company's exposure to credit risk is Influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers. Trade
receivables loans and other recelvables are typically unsecured. Credit risk has always been
managed by the company through credit approvals, establish credit limits and continuous
monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business. The company uses a provision matrix to compute the ECL allowance
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43.2

43.3

43.4

43.5

for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes inta account available external and internal
credit risk factors such as company historical experience for customers and current market
credibility of the customer.

Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair valve of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
Interest rate risk, currency risk and aother price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity
risk. Financiai instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and fioating interest rates. The
interest rates are disclosed (n the respective notes to the financial statement of the Company.
The following table analysis the breakdown of the financial assets and liabilities by type of
interest rate:

{Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Financlal assets
Non-interest bearing
Cash and cash equivalent 560.30 558.16
Others Financial Assets 61.82 206.33
Trade receivable 649.53 643.82
Interest bearing
Bank Balances (fixed deposit) 0.68 46.40
Qthers Financial Assets 338.73 357.52
FInanclal liabilities
Non-interest bearing
Trade Payable 6,496,53 5,230.09
Other Financial Liability 4,645,15 6,275.57
Interest bearing
Borrowlng 4,424.28 4,473.25
Other Financlal Liability 535.67 899.39

Currency Risk

The company does not have any currency risk exposure as there is no foreign currency
cbligations/receivable.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rsk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash
and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable Josses. The Company’s objective is to at
all times maintain optimum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is the carrying amounts. The liquidity risk is managed on the
basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The trade payable and other payabies
are having short-term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reaschable
approximation of fair velue, The following table analysis financial liabilities by rematning
contractual maturities:
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1to5 > 5 years Tatal
1 Year f On years
demand

Yeaar ended 31 March 2019

(;Bq%i;ow;gngz(ilr;cruding interest) 5.549.40 ) R 5,549.40
I__cher financial liabllitles {(Note 17) - 554,65 - 554.65
Trade payable (Note 20) 6,496.53 - - 6,496.53
Other financlal liabilittes (Note 21} 3,511,095 - - 3,511.05
16,111.63
Year ended 31 March 2018
_ii?;;;otiv;ng (zlrl'l)cludlng interest) 5,554.27 ) . 5,554.27
Other financial liabilities {Note 17) - 308.71 - 908.71
Trade payable (Note 20) 5,230.09 - - 5,230.08
Other financlal lizbilities (Nate 21) 5,185.23 - - 5,185.23
- 16,878.30

44. The Company have foilowing dues under trade payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. The disclosure on above is based on the information available with the

Company:
{Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars For the year For the year ended
ended March 31, March 31, 2018
2019

A. | Dues remaining unpaid as at Balance
Sheet date B __ o _
Principal Amaount _ _14.81 24.09
Interest Amount 15,72 16.37

B. | Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the
Act, along with the amount of payment
made to the supplier and service providers - -
beyond the appointed day during the
period

C. | Interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which has been
paid beyond the appointed day during - -
period) but without adding the interest
_specified under the Act

D | Further interest remaining due and

. | payable even in the succeeding years,

until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are actually paid to the small
enterprise,

E. | Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as 15.72 16.37
at Balance sheet date

*Note: MSMED has been disclosed during the current financial year as the company has
recejived details from suppliers from during the financial year.

45. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and

all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective
of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
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'The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financlal covenants, To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep optimum
gearing ratio. The Company [ncludes within net debt, interest bearing loans and barrowlings,
trade and other payables, iess cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

(Rs. Iin lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowings 4,424.28 4,473.25
Trade Payahle 6493.53 5,230.09
Othet financlal liabllities 5180.82 7,174.96
Less: cash and cash equivalents 560.30 ~ {558.16)
Net debt (A) 16,658.93 16,320.14
Total equity 1379.72 _5,542.72
Total member's capital (B) 137972 5,542.72
Capital and Net debt (C) 18,038.65 21,862.86
| Gearing ratio (%) {A/C) 92.35 74.65

The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adijust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

46. Value of consumption of Raw Material, Spare parts and componants consumed during
the year:
{Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Period ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Value % Value %
Raw Material Consumed
Indigenous* 3,530.99 100%| 3,477.77 100 %
Imported - | B -
Total 3,530.99 100%| 3,477.77 100 %
Spare parts and components
Indigenous 563.21 106% 617.74 99.63 % |
Imported - - 2.2% 0.37 %
Total . 563.21 100% 620.03 | 100.00 %
¥ Includes swap purchase of clinker amounting to Rs. 135.67 Lakhs (Previcus year - Rs,
436.59)
47. Raw material consumption:
- {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Quantity Quantity Value for Value for
(in MT) {in MT) Year Ended Year Ended
Year Ended Year Ended March 31, March 31,
March 31, March 31, 2019 2018
2019 2018
Limestone 13,31,306 g,77,526 3,005.55 2,208.94
Laterite/Iron ore 19,661 i4,876 218.00 146.66
Gypsum 260 790 6.35 222.77
Slag 13,204 34,768 115.81 346.74 |
Clinker* 9,044 26,621 | 185.28 551.66
Total 3,530.89 3,477.77 |

* Includes swap purchase of clinker amounting to Rs. 135.67 Lakhs {Previous year - Rs.

436.59)
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48.

49,

i)

Turnover during the year:

{KRs, in lakhs)

Particulars Quantity Quantity F‘Ualue {(Rs. In Value (Rs, In

{in MT) {in MT) lakhs) Year lakhs) Year

Year Ended Year Ended Ended March Ended March

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 31, 2019 31, 2018

Clinker* 8,89,433.07 6,50,996.68 26,912.52 18,650.51
Cement 26,870.92 63,226.51 853.55 2,024.50
Total B 27,766.07 20,675.41

* Includes swap sales of clinker amounting to Rs. 135,67 Lakhs (Previous year - Rs. 436.59)

Related Party disclosures as required by Ind AS are as under:

List of Related Parties and relationships.

A. Holding Company: Jalprakash Assoclates Limited (JAL)

B. Fellow Subsidiary Companies:
Jaypee Infratech Limited
Himalyan Expressway Limited
Gujarat Jaypee Cement & Infrastructure Limited
Jaypee Agra Vikas Limited
Jaypee Fertilizers & Industries Umited
Jaypee Cement Corporation Limited
Himalyaputra Aviation Limited

L.

el A
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laypee Assam Cement Limited

Jaypee Infrastructure Development Limited {formerly known as Jaypee Cement Cricket
India Ltd.)
Jaypee Healthcare Limited (subsidiary of JIL)
Jaypee Cement Hockey (India) Limited
Jaypee Ganga Infrastructure Corporation Ltd.
Jaiprakash Agri Initiatives Company Limited (subsidiary of JCCL)
Yamuna Expressway Tolling Limited (subsidiary w.e.f, 20.04.2017)
Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikas Private Limited (subsidiary of JFIL w.e.f.26.07.2017)
Kanpur Fertilizers & Cement Limited {subsidiary of JUBVPL w.e.f. 26.07.17)

m

hi

H

Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited {JPVL)

Jaypee Powergrid Limited (subsidiary of JPVL}
Jaypee Arunachal Power Limited (subsidiary of JPVL)
Sangam Power Generation Company Limited (subsidiary of JPVL)
Prayagraj Power Generation Company Limited (subsidiary of JPVL upto 18.12.2017)
Jaypee Meghalaya Power Limited (subsidiary of JPVL)
Bina Power Supply Limited {subsidiary of 1PVL)
Jaypee Infra Ventures (A Private Company With Unlimited Liability)
Jaypee Development Corporation Limited

. JIL Information Technology Limited (JILIT)
. Gaur & Nagi Limited
. Ingeslign Enterprises Private Limited {IEPL)
. Senebhadra Minerals Private Limited

. RPJ MInerals Private Limited (RPJMPL}

. Tiger Hills Holiday Resort Private Limited

fluence:
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16. Sarveshwari Stone Products Private Limited

17. Rock Solid Cement Limited

18. Jaypee International Logistics Company Private Limited

19. Jaypee Hotels Limited

20. Yamuna Expressway Tolling Private Limited (formerly known as Jaypee Mining Ventures Pvi. Ltd.
{associate co. till 24.03.2017}

21. Ceekay Estates Private Limited

22. Jaiprakash Exports Private Limited

23. Bhuml Estate Developers Private Limited {BEDPL)

24. Jaypee Technical Consultants Private Limited

25. Jaypee Uttar Bharat Vikas Private Limited (associate Co. till 25.07,2017)

26. Kanpur Fertilizers & Cement Limited {associate Co. till 25.07.2017)

27. Madhya Pradesh Jaypee Minerals Limited

28. MP Jaypee Coal Limited

29. MP laypee Coal Fields Limited

30. Andhra Cements Limited

31. Jaypee Jan Sewa Sansthan ('Not For Profit' Private Limited Company)

32. Think Different Enterprises Private Limited

33. JC World Hospitality Private Limited

34, Ibonshourne Limited { w.e.f, 11.01,16)

35. 1C Wealth & Investments Private Limited

36. CK World Hospitality Private Limited

37. Ubrans Venture Private Limited

38. Librans Real Estate Private Limited

39, Samvridhi Advisors LLP

40. Jaiprakash Kashmir Energy Limited

41, Anvi Hotels Private Limited (dissolved w.e.f. 16.07.16)

42. Pac Pharma Private Limited

43. Kram Infracon Private Limited (KIPL)

44, First Light Estates Private Limited

Companies mentioned at 51 Mo, 1 to 7 became an Associate Company in place of subsidiary w.e.f,
18.02.2017

Com aving slanificant influenc Company.

Steel Authority of India Limited (holding 26% of the paid-up equity share capltal )
Kev Managerial Personnel:

Shri Sunny Gaur

Shri Rahul Kumar {up to 31.03.2018)

Shri Ram Bahadur Singh

Shri Tilak Raj Kekkar {(up to 04.03,2018)

Shii Satish Charan Kumar Patne

Ms Simi Gaur
Stri Ajay Sharma  (upto 21.4.17)

Shri Sunil Joshi
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Shri Mylavarapu Ravl

Shri P.Saidev

Shri 7.8, Singh

Shri Ashok Kumar Jain

Shrl Manoj Gaur (KMP of JAL)

Shri Sunit Kumar Sharma (KMP of JAL )

Shri Suresh Chand Rathi, {LIC Nominee) {KMP of JAL)

Shri Shailesh Verma, {(SBI Nominee) (KMP of JAL}

Shri Raj Narayan 8hardwaj (KMP of JAL)

Shri Basant Kumar Goswami (KMP of JAL)

Ms. Homai A, Daruwalla (KMP of JAL)

Shri Kailash Nath Bhandari (KMP of JAL)

Shri Chandra Prakash Jain (KMP of JAL)

Shri Keshav Prasad Rau (KMP of JAL}

Shri Tllak Raj Kakkar (KMP of JAL)

Shri Pankaj Gaur {(KMP of JAL)

Shril Ranvijay Singh {KMP of JAL)

Shri Subrat Kumar Mohapatra (ID81 Nominee till 12,02,18) (KMP of JAL)
Shri Subhash Chandrz Bhargava (1ill 22.04.17) (KMP of JAL)

Shrl Madhav P. Phadke (IDBI Nominee) (from 10.06.15 to 27.11.16) (KMP of JAL)

ii) Transactions with related parties:

{Rs. in lakhs)
s. | Nature of 2018-19 2017-18
No. Transaction Related Party
Amount Balance Amount | Balance
1y | Sale of Cement - 163.79
{ii) Purchase of Spares 4.23 1.16
{iin) Purchase of Pet Cake 114.66
-
{iv) Sale of clinker E 1,195.80
(v} Sale of Gypsum Jaiprakash - 52,218.92 | 2.38 | 5384627
| (vi) | Refund of Advances | Associates Limited 1,773.54 Cr. - cr.

Consent feas
{vii) payment on behalf of 38.85

company
{viii) | AMC of SAP 32.1%
{ix) Sate of Pet Coke 25.50 -

Rent & Water
2 Charges. croel Auth f 44.28 73.57
. Track sharing | Steel Authority o

_(”) malntenance India Limited - | 43%.50Cr. - 72.54 399.5Cr,
{iit) Slag Purchased 142,19 356.89
Jaypee
. Development

3 Safety - & - security/ | oo ation 501.73 | 212.10 Cr. 400.27 | 147.77 Cr.

tMedical service Uimited
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4 (r) —Service o 0.51 0.29
= . ]I“f‘”L'T'aIfg; 0.28 Cr. 0.27 Cr.
()] Purchase of IT Spare echnciogy Lim 0.09 -
. Purchases/Repalring Jaype Cement
> () of Stores & Spares Co‘;gofatlon € Lid. 96.27 407.71 C 62.52 320.95 C
(laypee Hi- Tech ' - ' o
{ily Sale of Scrap Casting & H.E.W.} 8.44 -
Jaypee Cement )
& Sale of Spares Corporation Ltd 407.58 Cr. 5.19 | 407.58 Cr.
Andhra Cement
7 Sale of Coal Limited 115.78 772.02 Cr. 71.75 | 905.88 Cr,
Payments on behalf | Jaypee Power _
8 of Company vVenture Limited 0.32 1.81 Cr. 1.49 Cr.
50. Expenditure and Earning in Foreign Currency: Nil (Previous Year: Nil}
51. Earnings per Share (EPS)
- - {Rs. in lakhs unless otherwlise stated)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018
Net profit for the period (befare OCI) (4164.67) (4,203.74)
Weighted average no. of Equity Shares 379,684,800 375,684,800
Diluted average no. of Equity Shares - -
Basic earnings per share {in Rs.} (1.1 (1.1
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) (1.10) (1.11)
| Face value of each shares (in Rs.) 10.00 10.G0
52. Certain balances of Trade Receivable, Advances to suppliers, Trade Payable etc. are subject to

confirmations. In the opinion of the management, no major adjustment will be required to be
made in the accounts on receipt of these confirmations and subsequent to their reconciliations.

53. All flnanclal information presented in Indlan rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakh upto two decimals except where otherwise stated. Figures in brackets represent

corresponding previous year figures, Previocus year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified
wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's ciassification / disclosure.

As per our separate report of even date attached,
For CHATURVEDI & PARTNERS For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Ac tants
Registratio No/ 307068E
( W

@)

A ahansaria R B sing

Partner r . Director

M No 500819 ma 00008253 DIN 00229692
Place : New Delhl Sgitg C Stephen

Dated : May 21, 2019 CFO Company Secretary
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